
 Official Minutes of Public Hearing held Monday, December 10, 2012 

1 

 

THE CITY OF POUGHKEEPSIE 

 NEW YORK 

 

                                           PUBLIC HEARING 
(PROPOSED WASTEZERO PLAN)  

                                                 MINUTES 
 

Monday, December 10, 2012 5:30 pm   City Hall 

 

Chairwoman Johnson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

Gene DeMarco -  2606 Mulberry Court Fox Hill Phase I – I’m here tonight wearing 

many hats. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  And, which hat are you wearing tonight, sir? 

 

Gene DeMarco:  All three. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Well…I think you need to decide on one. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  Well, I think I’ll preface each remark with which it is, if I may. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  OK.  

 

Gene DeMarco:  I’m here as a taxpayer, a homeowner since 1972 in the Poughkeepsie, 

I’m here certainly, as Commissioner of Assessment for the last 7 years in the City and I 

am also President of the largest phase in Fox Hill I.  Unfortunately, I will soon be a 

victim of the economy, like so many other people.  I am being retired.  Make no bones 

about it, this was not my first choice.  But I decided to step aside for the good of the City, 

and probably have saved one job.  As far as the waste zero program or pay as you go is 

concerned, as far as the $.08 stipend for the waste zero, and the obvious difficulty in 

keeping adequate supplies of bags on the shelves.  This program is asking for abuse, 

which could leave garbage piled up all over the City, as well as those people who will 

throw garbage to the closest dumpster.  It would be an expensive nightmare to enforce.  

But, I’m not here to talk about that program.  I’m here to talk about garbage, trash and 

weeds proposal.   
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Chairwoman Johnson:  Are you aware that this public hearing is about Pay as you 

Throw? 

 

Gene DeMarco:  I am aware of that.  I would hope that you and the Council will afford 

me the courtesy to speak for 10 minutes. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson: I cannot break the rules, sir.  If I broke the rules at a public 

hearing, then I’d have to break it for every person that came to a public hearing.  The 

public hearing is for the sole purpose of, it says here, “Waste Zero Plan:  Pay as You 

Throw,” but, we do have another meeting scheduled at 6:30 p.m. where you could speak 

at public participation concerning any subject.  You may proceed. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  Ms. Johnson, on December 3
rd

  Bruce Dooris sat in this chair with a 5 

minute limit… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Excuse me, sir, you can’t mention names… 

 

Gene DeMarco:  There was another gentleman who sat in this chair, who was 

supposedly given 3-5 minutes but was here for 15 minutes and he was a City employee.  I 

am an employee of the City.  I would expect the same courtesy for another 10 minutes, if 

you don’t mind.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  How much time do you want, because you have 5 minutes. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  10 minutes. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  10? 

 

Gene DeMarco: 10, we’re wasting time now.  Now, if you’ll just let me continue, I’ll get 

to it. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Request denied.  Please do 5 minutes, I’ll try to give you some 

extra, but 10 minutes, absolutely…I really don’t have… 

 

Gene DeMarco:  I’d like to talk about the Garbage, Trash and Weeds proposal.  I heard a 

lot of people make their calculations, but I am in somewhat of a unique position.  As the 

Commissioner of Assessment, I’ve looked at your numbers.  I’ve looked at your latest 

numbers, at your request, Ms. Johnson.  I went and got the numbers that you provided to 

go over your income and expense for that program. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I didn’t give you any numbers, sir.  I asked you for numbers.  I 

asked you for information.  I didn’t give you anything 

 

Gene DeMarco:  You went through your bag, looking for your copy to give me and said 

I could get them from somebody else.   
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Chairwoman Johnson:  I said you could get it from Finance. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  And I did,  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, Sir (taps gavel).  Sir, this is not a Q & A.  This is not a back 

and forth… 

 

Gene DeMarco:  I’m not asking you any questions. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  This is your time.  Just get to the point of what you want to 

discuss.  Stop the clock over and give him 5 minutes.  Stick to the subject, because now 

my patience is getting a little thin.   

 

Gene DeMarco:  I am in a unique position being the Commissioner of Assessment in the 

City.  In your calculations, you left out all the abandoned homes. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, we’re not talking about my calculations.  This public 

hearing… 

 

Gene DeMarco:  You keep interrupting me.  I thought you were going to allow me… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir..sir…again… 

 

Gene DeMarco:   Ma’am…this is a public hearing… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, sir, order...(taps gavel) 

 

Gene DeMarco:  You gave me 10 minutes.  Are you going to throw me out of here?  I 

would appreciate it if… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, this meeting is about Pay as you Throw, Waste Zero, sir. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  As I said, I’m in a unique position in the numbers you provided for the 

other program.  You are incorrect with those numbers. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, sir…I cannot… 

 

Gene DeMarco:  You left out abandoned homes… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  (Bangs gavel)…Next. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  …to the amount of… 

 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Constance Kazolias, please come up. 
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Gene DeMarco:  …you left out 7%  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, you’re being… 

 

Gene DeMarco:  …tax… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, sir (bangs gavel) you’re being out of order.   Mr. Kazolias. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  …in the income.  (Continues to talk at the same time as Chairwoman 

Johnson).   Your numbers are $350,000 to $500,000 overstated.  

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Corporation Counsel, please.  I can’t have this.  This is just out 

of order here. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  …and to top off all that, it would be an added expense to administer the 

collection and enforcement. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Why don’t we take a 5 minute recess? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Alright, we’re being forced to take a 5 minute recess for 

someone who is out of control.   

 

Gene DeMarco:  I’m not out of control.  I’m a taxpayer in the City of Poughkeepsie. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  This is really terrible.  Can I have a motion? 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Motion. 

 

Vice Chair Rich:  Second. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Recess called. 

 

Gene DeMarco:  There’s no vote on that?   Just a motion and a second? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Yes.  Roll call vote. 

 

Councilmember Herman:  I’m a nay, only because another person gets up here and 

talks about how the daisies bloom in Kingston.  And, he’s giving us numbers that are for 

any proposals in the City… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Sir, I understand… 

 

Councilmember Herman:  Don’t interrupt me, please.  It’s not fair.  The gentleman 

works for the City.  He’s given numbers that are accurate for the City on Sanitation 
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whether it’s “Pay-as-You-Throw” or your own proposal.  I want it on record that you’re 

cutting this man off, and I’m against it. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I’m not cutting him off.  We have a public hearing on Waste 

Zero Plan, Pay as You Throw.  There’s another meeting after this where you could talk 

about any subject.  We have to stick to the rules of the public hearing. 

 

Councilmember Herman:  When do you want to stick to the rules? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Can we do a roll call vote? 

 

Councilmember Solomon seemed confused about what was being voted on.   

 

Chairwoman Johnson explained that the vote was for a recess because the hearing was to 

discuss Waste Zero, Pay-as-you-Throw, nothing else.  She further explained that another 

public hearing will be held at 6:30 p.m. to speak on any subject.  

 

Gene DeMarco:  You don’t think I’ve earned this? 

 

Proceeded with the roll call vote.  Councilmember Mallory who abstained initially 

because he came in late and wasn’t aware of the events that transpired.  Has now voted, 

Aye. 

 

Councilmember Parise as he was called upon for his vote, stated the following:  Nay.  I 

just want to say something.  I called this meeting…we all voted on this meeting, 8-0 for 

both topics? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson and Councilmember Boyd:  It wasn’t on both topics. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  It was for both topics… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  No, no, no.  It was for two separate hearings, ask the 

Chamberlain. 

 

Councilmember Parise:  No it was not. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  It was.  Yes, it was. 

 

Councilmember Boyd:  Look at your agenda. 

 

Corporation Counsel Ackermann:  Chairwoman Johnson? There’s a motion for a 5 

minute recess on the floor. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Let’s finish with the roll call. 

 

Recess called. 
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Motion to resume the meeting carried. 

 

 

Constantine Kazolias - 47 Noxon Street – I’d like to know who the Parliamentarian is 

for this Council, that’s what I’d like to know.  You run by the rules of Robert’s waters?  I 

just asked a question, but I’ll address my remarks to this public hearing, regarding 

alternate Waste Zero Management. I sat through it.  To me, as far as I’m concerned, this 

will be the biggest mistake the City could do.  This is one where we go buy the bags for 

$3.00 – if they don’t buy the bags, they’re gonna go buy the bags for $.20 apiece and 

throw them out on the street.  I’m 100% opposed to this.  I saw the brochure that Waste 

Zero Management handed out.  There’s going to be monies made from recycling.  

There’s going to be $120,000 for the Transfer Station and only $90,000 appeared on the 

ledger.  I’d like to know what happened to the other $20,000 but that’s something else.  

I’m totally against it.  My son called me in from Tampa and he said, “You’ll go from 

Tree City to Rat City.”  So, I think you should forget about this one.  I’m 100% against it 

because who’s going to buy the $3.00 bags?  If another, cheaper bag is put out there, is 

the garbage guy going to pick it up?  There’s a lot of things I don’t like about this one.  

There’s too many imponderables and… it’s “guesstimates.”  I’ll be speaking at the 

meeting when it reconvenes about the shenanigans going on in the County, as far as sales 

tax and everything else.  But that’s something else.  As far as I’m concerned, I’m against 

it and I think this Council should vote it down completely.  I’m a senior citizen and if I 

throw away 1 $3.00 bag a week.  Where are you going to buy these bags?  The transfer 

station?  What if a person uses more than that…and suppose they don’t want to go to the 

transfer station to buy the bags and puts out 5 or 6 bags…do you think those $.20 bags 

will get picked up?  Whose responsibility is it going to be when the $3.00 bags that aren’t 

the $3.00 bags?  This shouldn’t even be considered as one of the three options, but I’ll be 

talking when they reconvene for the Common Council. I’m against it 100% - I think that 

they should vote it down completely. 

 

 

Darren Kochanowski - 45 Talmadge Street – I’m totally against it also, as the previous 

gentleman said.  I think we’re going to see a bigger problem with people not going to 

purchase the bags.  We’re going to see a lot more garbage on the streets, which we 

haven’t seen in the past because these DPW guys work their backsides off to make sure 

the street stays clean and neat.  What I see on my block of houses, that I’m against, is that 

a single home being converted to a two family home.  The taxes are the same amount that 

I pay for mine, for a two family.  They’re producing a lot more garbage than I am.  This 

house was illegally made into a two family because the Zoning Board thought that there 

were too many abandoned homes in the City of Poughkeepsie. If taxes keep going up  

there will be more abandoned homes, because people can’t afford the cost of living here.  

In the past, people seemed to budget in with the work for DPW.  I still think that’s 

something to be looked at, that can be…everybody still keep their job, their position and 

do the good job that they’re doing currently.  I think that with all these two family homes 

and multiple livings, that people aren’t getting taxed properly.  That’s leaving a lot of 

money out there, on the table for the City to collect.  The Zoning Board and everything 
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else doesn’t correspond or seem to communicate with one another to get all their “ducks 

in a row.”  Everything is kind of, here, there, spotty…let’s work for what’s today, not 

let’s work for what’s the future for the City of Poughkeepsie.  That’s the bigger issue. 

Everybody needs to work together, to get their ducks in a row, and pay their real dues.  

That’s where your income…if they went back and re-figured out the zoning and the taxes 

of these two, three and four family homes that are producing all this garbage and accord 

the tax bill yearly on that, then you could offset the cost and we won’t have to do this 

purchase program with the bags or a private entity to come pick up the garbage. In my 

personal opinion, what will happen is we’re going to see a lot of garbage on the streets 

again.  People aren’t going to care; people don’t care now.  Unfortunately, we’ve got the 

good, the bad in the City here.  Again, we have to work with this to make it right.  You 

can’t keep taxing single family homeowners.  We have a lot of elderly people here that 

can’t afford that on Social Security.  But we get the “Fat Cats” of the landlords that don’t 

care anything but collecting money and not paying their dues to the City.   

 

Ken Stickle - 118 Catherine Street – Something the gentleman earlier just said is not 

true.  First of all, $3.00 bags are not going to work for the simple fact that, how can you 

tell a mother on Social Services right now because she can’t find a job, is making a 

choice between feeding her kids and taking out the trash at $3.00 per bag has to be paid.  

When compared to other stores’ bags, Family Dollar, Home Depot, etc. (I use Home 

Depot commercial grade and pay about $18.00 for about 35 bags – that doesn’t add up to 

$.20 bags).  You tell the residents here we have a poverty level because nobody has 

thought of one important thing - creating jobs in the City – good paying jobs, something 

where you want to give $3.00 per garbage bag…give somebody a job paying $10 - $12 

per hour at least.  I’m making minimum wage.  We don’t have any jobs in the City.  We 

have fast food restaurants and we have restaurants.  We don’t really have any industry 

here, and people want to cut the buses?  How are people getting to their jobs?  We don’t 

have jobs here.  Anybody sitting that’s sitting up on this Council that works for any 

organization besides being a Council Member is a very lucky person.  I run my own 

business and I haven’t seen a pay raise in I don’t know how long, but I keep going.  How 

am I going to take this $3.00 per bag off my income taxes?  How am I going to turn 

around and pay for private hauling?  I already figured out if the City goes with the 

Democrats’ plan I have a way of doing it.  But, you’ve got too many people in this City 

that do not have jobs, who are trying to stay in an apartment.  I’m sick and tired of 

hearing everybody talk about the greedy landlords, because the rents are going down just 

as the property values are in the City.  Go down to the City Court.  We have the 

Corporate Counsel here.  He can tell you the number of City Court evictions per week, 

because people can’t pay their rent.  Do you think they’ll say, I’ll pay $3.00 per bag and 

not eat or pay their rent?  People are going to Welfare to get their Central Hudson bills 

paid.  So, excuse me, start thinking with your heart and show some compassion.  I said it 

when the 411’s came through.  The City is now being sued over that incident.  I don’t 

know how that’s going, but pretty soon we’ll probably have another law suit over $3.00 

per bag. We cannot afford to lose our Sanitation Department. Our City is on the 

borderline of being a half-clean city.  We need more people in the Sanitation Department 

and less people in the Executive Offices.  We need people out here cleaning, not people 

making decisions constantly.  Our workforce is very important to the city, and there’s 
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something somebody keeps forgetting – we don’t need any more chiefs.  We need more 

Indians. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Are there others who would like to speak regarding the 

Alternative Waste Zero Plan – Pay-as-you-throw?  Sir, you can’t speak twice.  I’m not 

going to go through that again, please. 

 

Bruce Dooris, Vice President of CSEA - 41 Wilson Blvd – I’m here to talk about 

Waste Zero and why that plan is not going to work.  I think we’ve heard a lot of reasons 

already for the past 2-3 weeks and will continue to go over it.  One of the reasons is, I 

agree with Gene DeMarco.  These bags are all going to end up in other people’s 

dumpsters.  Not only in other people’s dumpsters, but in the parks.  We already pick up 

garbage in the parks.  People are smart.  They may get fined the first time, by leaving the 

bag in the park, but they won’t get fined again because there’s not going to be any 

evidence in the bag.  They’re smart – they take all the mailings out, so all they leave is 

the garbage.  Mr. Stickle talked about cleaning, so we’re going to need even more people 

to clean. People are just not going to do it.  We have business owners who actually bring 

their garbage out and put it in those trash cans on the street.  Stores are going to get a 

markup.  This is going to be a hot commodity on the street, selling bags like selling loose 

cigarettes.  Another thing is the cost. Waste Zero says that the average use is 1.5 [bags].  

That’s hard to do unless you’re the best at recycling. I agree that you need to recycle, 

that’s thousands and hundreds of thousands of dollars bym recycling.  1.5 bags is $234.00 

per year.  If you go over by ½ a bag, that’s $312.00, over by one bag, that’s $390.00 per 

year.  I made some comparisons.  I brought in some bags – this box costs $5.00 (Hefty, 

good bags) at $.27 per bag, Waste Zero’s plan for this size is $54.00; Glad Bags – 28 ct. 

$3.86 at $.12 per bag, Waste Zero = $84.00;  the best is, 10 bags for $1.00 (they’re 

probably thin, but I bought it for $1.00), this is what I use…because it’s getting thrown 

away into the trash.  Now if they pack them in boxes of 40, like this one I bought for 

$7.50, Waste Zero = $120.00 for the same size.  My time is up.  Thank you. 

 

Steven Planck – 81 Carroll Street -  Thanked all for being there.  I guess true to my 

form I’m a little progressive because I think Waste Zero is a good idea.  Truth be told, I 

guess the guys that are over here (points to sanitation workers) 

including….(inaudible)…I got a fine.  I don’t think any of those guys have to lose their 

jobs – I’ll say that again.  None of you have to lose your jobs.  There’s plenty of money.  

Just needs to come out of the shadows a little bit.  What are the facts about Waste Zero?  

According to a 2006 EPA report, the Environmental Protection Agency actually said that 

illegal dumping is up 20%.  That’s a fact.  You can find that report – I did.  Charlottsville, 

VA estimates illegal dumping at 28-43% another increase you can look up as well.  The 

“Shumatz Economic Research Associates” in Superior, Colorado another fact you can 

find out, says that PAT (Pay-as-you-Throw) will reduce garbage going out to a landfill by 

17%.  So I agree with the union guy, that the City does need to increase it’s efforts for 

recycling.  I think that it’s a revenue stream that basically, you can tap into as long as 

we’re asking the right questions.  I also agree with some of the people in the audience. 

I’ve talked to my tenants about it; I’m a landlord, but not one who is out of sight, out of 

mind landlords.  I’m your neighbor.  I live right down the street from you.  When I go out 
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to pick up the trash left out the night before, I go to four neighbors to the left and four 

neighbors to the right of me.  That’s who I am. The one problem with PAT (Pay-as-you-

Throw) is that number one, using plastic bags is a nasty idea.  Buffalo saw an 80% 

decrease in the rodent population when they switched from plastic bags to plastic 

containers.  So, if you do implement the Pay-as-you-Throw, don’t use plastic bags.  

Grand Rapids, MI is also getting rid of the plastic bags this year, to decrease their rodent 

population, but also, because people were dumping their plastic bags.  They have a bag 

and tag system.  However, people were stealing the bags and tags and putting them on 

their own garbage for it to get picked up.  Another problem with Pay-as-you-Throw is 

that it doesn’t work in densely populated areas.  So, for all of the apartment buildings, it’s 

a complete nightmare.  The only way to get around that is if there were chutes in the 

building, with a key code system which allowed the chute to open.  Or, if the garbage was 

under a weight and measure system.  The bottom of the chute could actually weigh the 

person’s trash would be calculated.  Other than that, it would be a nasty, nasty headache 

and everything that I found on Pay-as-you-Throw suggests that.  What I do think 

however, is that it be quickly implemented in some of the other wards of the City – no 

disrespect to anyone in the fourth and second ward.  We could handle effectively to see if 

it works as well. One of the other things I found researching Waste Zero, is it’s 

fundamental goal is to generate socially desirable outcomes.  Meaning that a simple fee 

for a bag is not going to produce the results we’re looking for - less trash and more 

recycling.  If you have a set fee, it leaves no incentive to reduce the waste.  Does that 

make sense?  What other municipalities, again, no disrespect, like Town of 

Poughkeepsie, Beacon, Newburgh, etc. and other cities around the country actually have 

machines in their vehicles that weigh the stuff when it gets dumped. 

 

Francis Sheeley – 105 Crystal Hill Lane – I just want to say that there was no 

notification regarding the change in the agenda from garbage to Waste Zero bags.  Am I 

able to ask… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Excuse me, but, there was never a public hearing except for the 

Local Law.  That was the other public hearing that was pulled from the agenda.  It was 

concerning the Local Law and the Chamberlain pulled it off last week, and did the 

notifications because there was a problem with publishing in the paper.  That particular 

evening, Councilmember Parise wanted to add his idea, which was Waste Zero, Pay-as-

you-go public hearing.  So, we have had three meetings about the budget - three.  The 

other meeting was not about the budget, it was about setting the public hearing for the 

Local Law.  Madam Chamberlain, can you explain what happened.  You can explain it 

better… 

 

Ms. Sheeley -  Can I finish saying what I was going to say?  I called City Hall today and 

asked about the meeting, because I had heard that there was a change in the agenda.  I 

was told that I was absolutely right in that the agenda was changed from garbage to 

Waste Zero bags.  Let me finish… 

 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Go ahead, but it was never on garbage. 
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Ms. Sheeley:  If I call up and come to this meeting expecting to talk about garbage and 

I’m told or yelled at or whatever… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  No, no, no…nobody’s yelling at you but can you tell us who 

you spoke to? 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  Continuing to talk simultaneously with Chairwoman Johnson.   What you 

did to Gene [DeMarco].  I thought, gee, I didn’t know what paper to sign up on and 

didn’t really know if you would answer my question but I still don’t understand why you 

changed it, or when you changed it. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn:  I spoke with you earlier… 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  She was very nice. 

 

Madam Chamberlain:  I spoke with you and explained that the public hearing was 

pulled from this evening but were going to continue the public hearing on Waste Zero. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  What was the public hearing about that you pulled? 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn:  The proposed Local Law. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  The Local Law.  It was not about the budget or other 

alternatives.  It was about setting the public hearing for the Local Law.  So please 

continue, you have extra time. 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  Local Law with regards to garbage?  What are we talking about? 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn: Yes.  I spoke to you this morning and you had already known 

that, so, again, the Local Law was scheduled for this evening and was pulled last 

Tuesday.  It’s been on our website and throughout City Hall.    

 

Ms. Sheeley:  I know, but think about this, and I said it to you today, we all have a life.  

If you think I’m going to come up here every day and look at your bulletin board to see if 

you changed your agenda, that’s the craziest thing to expect from the public. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn:  It’s also on our website… 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  We’re all working people.  We all have a life.  So it should be publicly put 

into the Poughkeepsie Journal.  You should announce what your plans are… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  I think it was in the Poughkeepsie Journal Wednesday or 

Thursday, wasn’t it? 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  I’m not looking for a fight here, I’m just… 
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City Chamberlain Flynn:  It was changed in the Poughkeepsie Journal on Thursday. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Notification about the change was in the Thursday paper.   

 

Ms. Sheeley:  I read the paper every day.  Oh, alright.  I apologize if I’m wrong. 

 

City Chamberlain Flynn:  It’s been up for a week. 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  And, why…Mr. Parise, why did we do this?  Why did we change… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  This is not a Q & A.  You have 5 mins. to talk.  This is a public 

hearing about the Waste Zero plan.  We have another meeting at 6:30 p.m. for public 

participation.  We have 3 mins. and you can talk about any subject you want – at 6:30 

p.m., but this particular public hearing is about the Waste Zero Pay-as-you-Throw Plan. 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  We don’t have that…you’re proposing that? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  This is not a Q & A where you speak to us, but we don’t 

respond to you.  Let me read the rules… 

 

Ms. Sheeley:  Got it.  I stand corrected. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Is there anybody else who would like to speak at the public 

hearing regarding Waste Zero, Pay-as-you-Throw? 

 

Bernard Daisley – 6 High Street – Waste Zero is taking away jobs.  That is something 

that I would not support.  As a voting member in the City of Poughkeepsie with seven 

votes in my home, I’m very strong about people on the payroll remain on the payroll as 

long as possible.  Issues such as with Waste Zero is such that it will bring them into 

contradiction  and get them to lose their jobs, because we’re willing to contract it to 

someone who is already a millionaire I think is a decision without a heart.  I expect that 

when you come and ask me for a vote, you are pleading with my heart.  So, I am pleading 

with your heart today, tonight, for these men.  They are doing a tremendous job.  Waste 

Zero has its pros and its cons.  I don’t work in the City of Poughkeepsie…(inaudible) a 

dumpster, so I could take my garbage there.  I’m afraid that on High Street, where there 

are some other tenanted homes that the bags will just be thrown on the street.  No, why 

are we looking at garbage disposal in plastic bags?  Plastic does not deteriorate for a long 

time.  If we are going to keep it in plastic bags, then we are adding a “kicking the can 

down the road” problem for our children, grandchildren and great grandchildren.  Let us 

see if we can come to some common understanding.  Make sure we keep our tax rolls in 

tune, by keeping our employees and make sure that we look at alternatives in the best 

interest in the City of Poughkeepsie.  I’m very disturbed this evening, because if one of 

the sanitation workers on the lower rung of the employment ladder came up here and 

behaved in a manner as a gentleman did tonight, he would be disciplined tomorrow 

morning. 
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Chairwoman Johnson:  Mmm hmm.  That’s right. 

 

Mr. Daisley:  Respect is earned by you giving respect, and I am really disheartened to 

listen to that conversation here tonight.  I felt betrayed by the very people we gave 

authority to in this city, to work in the best interest of the people of our city.  I beg for 

sanity, for civility, that there ought to be an apology.  Not only to the members of the 

Common Council, but it must be recorded to the people of the City you represent. It must 

be nipped in the bud.  Thank God he’s on retirement now. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Thank God it’s on record too.   

 

Frank Clarke – 50 Rinaldi Blvd. – I wasn’t going to speak tonight on this because 

we’ve had so many meetings and so many people coming forward, not liking the plan.  

I’m just going to make a short statement.  This meeting that was called for Waste Zero, in 

my opinion, was a waste of time. 

 

Sharon Haugh - 307 Crystal Hill - Thank you for your patience in listening to us and 

giving us an opportunity to speak.  We elect you to protect us.  Please don’t sell us out to 

an outside firm.  I realize that it’s going to cost the City more money and you have a 

ceiling that’s been put on the tax levy.  We are willing to pay more money in a 

circumvent way, in any way necessary to keep the city having a Sanitation Department 

and keeping our garbage.  Currently, the bags are listed as $3.00 apiece.  Next year, I 

imagine they’d be $4.00 apiece.  It’s very likely…I, myself have no place to store my 

garbage for a week; outside or inside, but at $4.00 per bag, that could come to $50.00 per 

month for a family and that’s more than it takes to run our Sanitation Department if we 

contributed to the goals of the City.  I would ask you please, to recognize that we elected 

you as our representatives to protect us.  Provide Police, provide Fire and protect us and 

provide Sanitation for the City. 

 

Ken Levinson – 24 Garfield Place – I have interest in this basically, because I get 

garbage pickup from the City right now.  I have some multi-properties, two and three 

families that get pick up. 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  You understand that this public hearing is for Waste Zero plan, 

Pay-as-you-Throw, introduced by Councilmember Parise and Herman.   

 

Mr. Levinson:  Yes, that’s what we’re going to focus on.  It’s a shame that our 

Sanitation jobs are on the line.  They do fabulous work.  They keep the city clean 

working under very difficult conditions by not having trucks and time and weather.  The 

question is, everyone wants to try to have them continue if we can, but if we’re short 

revenue, we’ve got to find ways to raise money.  I was under the assumption that this 

particular plan was Pay-as-you-Go and that the City Employees would be able to keep 

their jobs with Pay-as-you-Go.  That’s the assumption I’m going under, correct or 

incorrect.  There’s pluses and minuses in every plan.  The advantage of having a Pay-as-

you-Go type plan is that if somebody’s an “empty nester” and they’re not here for 6 
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months per year because they live somewhere else, why should they pay for garbage 

pickup they don’t use.  There’s also incentive. When you pay as you go, people tend to 

reduce garbage and react according to money.  I believe clearly recycling will increase if, 

by reducing your garbage, you recycle more.  I know it’s very simple with rents.  I charge 

a late fee.  When I didn’t charge a late fee, nobody paid me on time.  As soon as I 

implemented a late fee, 90% of the people paid me on time, because they didn’t want to 

pay extra money.  So when you use a pay as you go you’re rewarding people to recycle, 

and rewarding them to conserve and not throw things away.  I think this is all good.  I 

would assume this assumption is although we may use bags or cans, I don’t know what 

the venue is, but at least our city Sanitation workers should be used to pick it up.  I think 

when you start charging a fixed price, per unit or per household, it gets very difficult 

because you have one person living in a house or a family of ten people.  You could have 

a three family house with three single people who don’t produce very much garbage, and 

you could have a single family house that has ten kids that produce a lot of garbage.   

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Mr. Levinson, maybe you’re not familiar with the Waste Zero 

Plan Pay-as-you-Throw.  We had a presentation here by that organization.  It also has to 

go out for RFP.  But the Pay-as-you-Throw is, you buy a bag, they propose that people 

will only throw out 1.5 bags per week. 

 

Mr. Levinson:  So, the City’s Sanitation workers would be picking the garbage up? 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Yes sir. 

 

Mr. Levinson:  So the goal was to keep the jobs doing this… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Yes. 

 

Mr. Levinson:  There are advantages and disadvantages in every plan.  At least the Pay-

as-you-go… 

 

Chairwoman Johnson:  Pay-as-you-Throw. 

 

Mr. Levinson:  Pay-as-you-Throw…at least it encourages recycling, which is a financial 

incentive and at least the folks who throw away garbage are the ones that pay for it.  So, 

there are some advantages too.  That’s it, thank you.  

 

This concludes the public hearing for Waste Zero Pay-as-you-Throw. 
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